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THE ELEVEN EL PASO COONTY COORTHOOSES

by Dave Hughes

El Paso County has occupied no less than
11 Court Houses since it was establis hed in 1 8671.
Five of them were inside Colorado City before
ColoradoSprings stole the County Seat from it in
1873 and then moved it 6 more times.

The story of the mowves reflects the
politicking and arpuments over money that still
accompanies County decizions.

After Congress lepally created Colorado
Territory in February, 1861, the first lepislative
meeting was held in Denver September gth.
Those attending divided the territory into
namead Counties. Govermnor Gilpin, appointed
Melancathon PBeach, Henry Clark and AD.
Sprague as the first County Commissionears in Fl
Paso County.

That Board met only once in Colorado
City on November r16th, at the Tappan
Merchantile Store, which made it, sort of the
first Fl Paso County ‘cowrt house’ This building
stood on the northwest corner of today's 28th
Street and West Colorade Avenue as the fust
fiame building in Colorado City. We only have a
distant actual photo of the Tappan Building,
Some promoter had a fancier promotional
sketch made of the building . T have included
that here. Tt never looked that gpood!

In December AD. Sprapue, PBenjamin
Crowell and John Bley became the first elected
Commissionels.

On January 6th, 1862 the Commissiones
convened at Beach’s office in a log building on
the north west corner of what is now z7th Street
and Colorado Avenue. That made it County
Couwrthouse #2. We have no picture of that long
gone building,

Ax their fourth meeting on January 1 8th,
WS, Beach, who was not a commissioner but in

whose building they were meeting, proposed
that the County ‘rent an office for the use of the
clerk and other offices. They apreed and drew
up a lease, Other than that ‘business’, dividing
the County into three voting districts, paying the
commissioners and the County Clerk a small
stipend, and appeointing Grand and ‘Petite’
Jurors nothing much else was done until 18673, a
vear later. The Treasurer Robert Finley had
collected %13800 dwing the wear, and the
Commissioners spent 310510, leaving a balance
of 332 00 in the County Treasury.

By late 1 863, however, lots more bus iness
had to be conducted. Three road districts were
created. They had to deal with petitions for road
chanpes and bridge repails. Money was so
scarce, they diverted funds from the School
Taxes. Familiar tactic? They had to pay a
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WELCOME
NEW MEMBERS!

Dennis Dosch
Maureen Ross
Stephanie Gamez
Lira Haight

Don Sanbom

Steve Daigle

Marilyn Panco

John & Chis Fotenos

LETTER TO THE EDITOR:

For all yvou volunteers who
give vour time to the museum, I,
among many others, thank yvou
Could we ask vou, in addition, to
turn on the hose to the sprinklers
while vou are there, and, as needed,
mowve them to the next needy
location--any arca with grass.

We can also use help with other
vard work, such as weeding,
trimming, and mowing. If yvou
have the wurge to help, please
contactus at 636-r225 if you can

Again, thank vou all

Jan de Chadenedes

WANT EMAIL
NOTIFICATION?
announcements? .. OCC  and
Coloradeo  histordcal info?. what's

going on at the History Center
between issues of West Word?
wIEEPONEes to questions?..

No, we aren’t creating an electronic
newsletter (yet). This request is in
response to requests to learn more
local history, have more fiequent
contact with the History Center, and
to reduce volunteer time spent
phoning the telephone tree.

If interested, please email the
following information to

his toryEoldcolo.com

Your Namse

Phone #

Email address Attre (if needed)
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surveyor layving out the road to Canon City,
fipure out how to board prisoners, and how to
reimburse those who took up arms' apgainst
Indian threats. Jupgling budpgets is not new! But
by April 18t 1866 the County Commissionels
decided it was time to move into better quarters.

They decided to rent the ‘Francisco
Hous& — a one story fitame structure — for bb.00
a month. That building stood at what is today
2528 West Colorado Avenue. We have an
historical marker there. The photograph 1 have
included may be it That building, about zoo
feet east of where the Commissioners had fist
met, became Cowthouse #7.

In Ociober, 1869, Irving Howbert was
elected County Clerk He did not like the
Francisco House as a Cowrt House. He wrote in
hiz 1925 ‘Memories’ biography “The County
Clerk's office was in the rear part of the building
and the fiont room was set apart for court
pwposes. 'The Clerk’s office was not plastered,
and notwithstanding the fact that there was a
big stove in the center, it was most
uncomfortable. Ink froze in the bottles almost
every night that 1 occupied the room. ..this
condition becoming almost unbearable, 1
perruaded the County Commissioners to rent
an adjacent log cabin and moved my office into
it. While less pretentious, it was much wammer
and more comfbrtable in every way than the
room I vacated.”

Of cowse that ‘adpcent log cabin' -
County Couwrthouse #4 is the 18r0 Garvin
Cabin that stands today in Bancroft Parde Tt
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3d Courthouse Location 18366

originally stood at 2610 West Colorad o Avenue,
a block wwest of the Francisco House. County
business was still so small that Howbert was
able to move the Cowt House records and
fumiture into the new building in less than 3o
minutes.

While there alwayws has been a dispute
whether that cabin deserves to be called the
‘First Colorado Capitol' building, there was no
question that members of the 13 man Territorial
Council = or Senate - caucused in that cabin in
1862, just as the House members met in the
Francisco House 5o what is a ‘capitol’ building
anyway, with two lepislative houses, an
administration, and a court sywtem? Seldom is
all povernment in one building,

It was into that Garvin Cabin Court
House that General Palmer first strode in late
1 860 before he drove the fist stake in 1871 that

was to become Colorado Springs
three miles further east It was
obvicus to Palmer that Howbert
was a bright voung man and as
recorder knew who owned all the
properties in El Paso County.

He persuaded Irving Howbert
to be the fiont man to buy up the
10,000 acres east of Limit Street
that became platted as Colorado
Springs.

The growth of the new
town of Colorado Springs
trippered a political flap that
involved both Colorado City and
Colorado Springs which led
directly to the rgth County
Couwrthouse,

On July gth, 1872, General

Courthouse #4 in Colorado City 1868

Cameron one of the investors in
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Colorado Springs approached the Commisrion-
els with a petition asking that the removal of the
Cowrt House fom Colorado City to Colorado
Springs be put to a vote at the September 1oth
Election

The politicking started in earnest
Colorado City folk knew what the loss of one of
the few thinpgs they had - the seat of County
Govemment - would mean The pioneers
remembered having lost the Territorial Capital
to Denver ten years earlier.

50 the alarmed Commigsioners, none of
whom were investors in Colorado Springs,
promised to build a new County Court House in
place of the cabin in Colorado City. They also
pledged toset aride the Fastern Half of U olorado
City Block 1 60 for the new structure.

But they were alko obliped to put the
question of location on the ballot

The Out West newspaper of Colorado
Springs (which became the Gazette) lobbied
hard. When the votes were counted, though,
Colorado City kept the County seat.

On October 7th Colorado City pioneer
Anthony Bott appeared before the Commisgion-
ers, and offtred the services of he and his asso-
ciates — namely John Tangmeyer = to build the
new courthouse. He argued a building zg fzet by
45 et would be too small, and that if they
agreed to make it 32 feet by qo feet his group
would build it for %2, 500.

There was then a viporous debate, as
Commissioner Matt France arpued that such an
expenditure of County funds would have to be
put to the vote of the people. Commissioners
McShane and Woodbury disagreed and the ar-
gument was continuad t© the next day. The
record showed that “After warm discussion, the
motion of Commissioners McShane that the
county entered into a contract with Anthony
Pott and John Langmever was adopted.”

Matt France still objected and insisted
his ‘protest be put into the record that, first
“that it was not the will of the people to spend
such money and that the contract should not be
let without advertising for bids.”

The Colorado Springs (Gazrette jumped
into the fay, aprecing with France, but also
contended that if the building was built only the
residents of Colorado City, not the entire County
should be compelled to pay for it

But the Commissioner majority
prevailed. And on October 1 gth, after reviewing
the plans, Attorney ] W Davidson was
instructed to draw up the contract, which was
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signad on Uctober z6th. Then Chaimman of the
Board of Commirsioners Woodbury signed on
behalf of El Paro County. Bonds in the penal
sum of b5,000 were signed by all

The whole legal and political process
moved 5o fhst, that work was even bepun before
the final deed from the Colorado City Land
Company for the plot of land - which is today
Bancroft Park - was transferred and recorded.

Building did not move as fast, however.
The firgt inspection of the two story brick
structure to approve a warrant for %1000 did not
happen untl April zoth, 1873 Tt was not until
mid May that the fiirniture was moved into the
building and it was not until May J1st that the
Commissioners held their firet meeting there,
from where they ordered the ‘full and final
payviment’ $1,500 be made to Anthony Bott
Contractor.

Only then, in their haste, did the
Commissioneis realize they had forpotten to
provide for an outhouse!

They had to advertise for a new bid for
geveral overooked items. On June 1oth when
the bids were opened the low bid was 5475 All
the Commissioners declared that was an
ouirageous sum. They rejected all the bids, and
advertised for new ones in the Gazette
Telegraph. On July Bth the bids were opened,
and the "“Walsh Brothers’ were awarded the
contract for the low bid of $305.

50 the gth Fl Paso County Couwrthouse
came into being. We have no picture of that
variously used, and badly built, structure. Tt
gettled, and swayed when the wind blew. We
only have a picture of a drmwing of Colorado
City that was constructed by school children.

The privy was still under construction
when, on July zé6th a petition signed by 460
County voters was presented to the Board
requesting that the issue be revisited at the
September oth, 1873 election. The
Commissioner®, having only met in the ‘new’
courthouse four times had to act on that
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petition, obviously pushed by those interested
in getiing the County Seat in Colorado Springs.
Only after examining the names thereon “one
by one” as they said, to ascertain if they were all
legal voters” and having decided that they were,
and the number was a majority of all voters of Fl
Paso County they put the matter back on the
ballot.

The politicking began again, in earnest
And an unlikely champion of Colorado City
began orating at every opportunity. “Judge”
Paldwin, the sheepherder fiom Templeton Gap
who had been scalped in South America, was
shot and nearly ecalped again in 1868 in what
was to be Colorado Springs , and who had once
judged sheep contests = which gave him the
name ‘Judge’ - spoke out loudly and often. He
had long since complained every time he
passed through the ‘new’ Colorado Springs
community enroute to the saloons of Colorado
City ffom Templeton Gap, that he couldn't pet
a smile in that town and there were
‘Shakespeare clubs running around all the time.’

He proclaimed, in his Trish brogue with
hise misshapen pw flom the Indian bullet that
passed through it, and in his cups “Auld Town
hag pot it and is goin’ to kape it" - meaning of
couwse, the County Seat

Colorado Springs circulated a very long
circular that, besides making the case why the
County Seat should be in Colorado Springs
where the nmilrocad now passed through,
promised to pay back the County $z,500, the
whole amount expended by the County for the
current Couwrt House, and a bonus of $roo.

It was a plain and simple bribe of the
County taxpayers.

Additionally the circular, sipned by The
Committee’ and invoking the name and credit
of the “Colorado Springs Company” promised a
building “as good and probably better than the
one now in use “ and land fora jail, and a whole
liz t of other accouterments.

The voters listened more to the sweet
promises backed by the dollar ripne dangled by
Colorado Springs than the appeal of ‘Tudge’
Baldwin, or of the pioneer voices from Colorado
City. They voted decisively on September g th
1877 to take the County Seat away Hom
Colorado City and give it to Colorado Springs.

On September 16th the Commissioners
took the Colormdo Springs Company up on their
offer of a rent-fiee building until a new court-
house was erected. They moved into the 6th
Cowthouse, a long white fiame structure which
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no longer exisrte on the north west comer of
Kiowa and Tejon street

Moving the County Safe was left up to
Irving Howbert, still Clerk and Recorder. (he was
reelected 5 times) A man named Badow, hired
for %25, only apreed to move the Mimiture.
Howbert had to find a team of homes and a
wagon to move the safe himselfl

By November it was clear that the new
building, now Couwrthouse #6, was not big
enough for the Cowt Room. So they had to rent
out Foote’s Hall on the south east corner of
Colorado Avenue (called Huerfano Street in
Colorado Springs then) and Cascade. They also
had to rent the Out West building for Grand Jury
meetingg.

Back in Colorado City the Commisgion-
ers gave School District #1 a gquit claim deed to
the property where the last courthouse stood,
for $40. School started in the ‘new’ Count House
School, on November 3d. That las ted until it was
torn down in 1 888, A larpe new school was built
- for %1 7000 - and the name Bancroft — after a
noted Western historian - was given to the
gchool and later the park in old ‘Cowthouse
Square’,

Then, demonstrating that plans
promised by politicians were ofien ignored after
an <lection, the Commiesioners, instead of
building a new cowt houwse on the donated
land, used the land for the County Jail! Which
was not rmzed until 1975 under Urban Renewal.

Abandoning  Couwrt House #6 in
September 1874, the Commissioners moved
again into rented Couwrt House #7 near the
comer of Pikes Peak and Te on, ford1 25 a month.

But then the issue of a ‘permmanent Court
House was raised apgain. Since this article is more
about Colorado City and eady Fl Paso County
than Colorado Springs T won't detail all that
went on, politically and economically in
ColoradoSprings. Suffice it to say, a “Temporary’
Count House was erected in 1878 on the
goutheart comer of Kiowa and Nevada Avenue.
That became Court House #8.

Theystayed in that “Temporary’ building
for 25 years.

Then in 19073, the oth and larpest
Cowrthouse, was built in ‘Alamo Park’ which is
today the Pioneer's Museum building,

That Couwrthouse was used for 58 vears,
until 1967,

In the spring of 1961 the current County
‘Office’ building fronting on Vermijo was built
for $r.5 million. That was #1o0. But then in the
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1gopg  the County started the massive
construction effornt that hag ended with the
Tenry Hamis Judicial Complex for $26 million.
Thats really the 11th Court House.

Cobarado -- Fl Paso — !'i'.'::.l::n'n{lg Spr"in-g.'i | ke JIA]

gth Courthouse = 1903

That %26 million was a lot more than the day
when in 1872, 2,500 was considerad by some
an unpardonable fiscal extravagance. In zo02
the voters agreed and defeated a bond issue for
new buildings and a jil. The County Commis-
sioners quietly issued a series of Certificate of
Participation Bonds, to pay for the hupe County
Couwrt Structure by leas< That sneaky maneuver
almost got the Commissioners recalled.

Nothing much has changed in El Paso County
government over the past 147 yeals no matter
where the Court House js.

11th and final Location 2002
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From the President’'s Desk~

Tvwe overseen a number of Territory
Dayg, but this one was the best ever as we took
in the most money. This event on May 24, 25,
26 ook the help of many voluntzers to do this.
Pat Fejedelem took a letter with our tax 1D to
stores and pot fiee soda and water to sell in
our booth. Tom Hendrx took the t2nt, tables,
and supplies to the cabin on Friday and he
and Wemer Kadson put up our booth next to
the cabin Saturday moming We were open
from 10 to 6 each daywith z shifts at the cabin
and booth. These were manned by Merle &
Don Ellis, Marpe & Joe Knorr, Martha & Curtis
Miller, Joanne & Wemer Katdson, Dave & Paty
Hughes, Betty PBaker, Kay Atteberry, Jo
Cervone, Nancy Micelli, Leslie Berprtrom, and
Barbara Barbaro. Kathy McePBride, Bev Disch,
and Sandy Hanzlian covered the Bookstore
Betsy Evans provided books and the cash box
for the booth and she and 1 opened and
closed the booth and cabin each day. Bety
was most helpful Mr. Fupene, the artist, drew
shetches by owr cabin and gave us the
proceads. Also we rented five of our parking
spots in our parking lot to the Gunslingers. 1
had over thirty people bake for the bake sale
and some of these people baked zand 3 times
g0 we would have encugh for the three day
gale. Bakerws were Pat Fejedelem, Jan
deChadenades, Dee PBreitenfeld, Sharon
Swint Sandy Hanzlian, Bev Disch, Diana
Francese, Nancy Stovall, Mede Fllis, Dorothy
Vidmar, Joanne Kadson, Carol Stoody, Linda
Day, Marnty Walker, Kathy McBride, Anita
Schimunel, Pat Ebersole, Betty Mapninie, Dotis
Morand, Bev Patterson, Verma Nelson, Cyndy
Estes, Vem Weskcott, Betty Grout, Marpe
Knom, Jo Cervone, Parbara Parbaro, Merv
Casey, Muriel Dunkley, Patsy Hughes, These
bakers provided us with a wonderful selection
of baked poods that went like hot cakes.
Kudos to everybody who made this event
such a good one.

Through the vears, T've had to depend
upon 50 many volunteers and Tve had a deep
respect for what so many were able to
contribute, The nunning of our History Center
and all the fundraisers and special evenis
would never have been possible without
them. T know as T continue petting volunteers
for our Society, I will continue to have our
volunteer's help.

Bev Disch, outpoing President
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From the President’'s Desk~

It's ‘ransition time’ at OCCHS as we prepare
for 2000 and the 150 year celebration of the
founding of Colorado Chty. We can look forward
to an exciting year! Please let Board members
know of any sugpestions you mieht have for
proprams or events as well as where you are
willing to participate and/or contribute.

The May gth OCCHS annual meeting bepan
with a lipht brunch followad by the business
meeting and an interesting propram, “Working
Women in the Pikes Peak Repion in the 19208,
presented by members, Michael and PattiOlsen.
The meeting was called to order by President,
Beverley Disch, with a quorum present The
annual Treaswer's report was given by David
Hughes, and Betsy Evans reporned on the
Musewm Bookstore. Coples of both reports are
available In the History Center office. Sharon
Swint presented the proposed slate for new
Board members Barbara Barbaro, Ant Crawford,
Janice deChadenades, Bewverley Disch, and
Joanne Farlson. With no firther nominations
fiorn the flbor, a motion was made and passed
to cast a unanimouws ballot for this slate. Those
ending their terms were Arlkene Casey, Board
Secretary, and Tom Hendrix, Board Vice
President. Many than ks for thelr volunieer hours
and wisdom dwing these years!

The Annual Board meeting was held May
1gth which included electon of new Board
officers. Those Elected were President Joanne
Farlson, vice President Phil McDonald,
Secretary. Barbara Barbaro, and Treaswrer. Dave
Huphes, Bev Disch has apreed to assume the
role of Voluntear Coordinator and continues as
chairman of the Annual Cemetery Crawl In
Aupust. We are indebied o her for many years
of dedicated leadarship and loyal membership.
Thank you for 50 much, Bevl

We thank Don Ellis who has stepped
forward as Editor, bepinning with this issue of
West Word. We are glad Merv Casey will
continug ® contribute hk Interesting historical
articles and tease uws with his observations.
MMany, many years of thanks o Merv as Edlior!

Swnmertime s always busy in Old Colorado
Clty. Please Bring yow fiiends and visitors to
attend some of ouwr event and view our
chanping exhibit, Tuesday Nights in July will
bepin July 15t with an Old-Fashioned Ice Crearn
Sochal & Cake Walk.an evening on the Hktory
Centar pato planned by Marpe Enorr and her
committee.

Have a pood summer everyonal

Joanne Karlson

lune Treasurer's Reporl

The palnting of the exterior of owr
History Center was completed the last week of
May. We have already had complements on [t
Wwe paid AM Fainting $11,800 for thelr work,
which at one pointhad g painters working away
with a hupe lift putting two of them on the bell
tower, where years ofold birds nests had to be
removed. $6,800 of the cost came right out of
our History Soclety’s savings hide, and the other
35,000 from an El Pomar grant to us.

The 30 Ladies Bev contacted came
through for the 3 day Territory Day's Bake sales
at the Cabin. We pot 5885 In homemade
Cookles and Pop sales. The book store sales
ware %274 Eupene the Artst auctioned one of
his Tadies’ painting and we recelved 365 fiom
cur share, and the Gun Slinper Reenactors pald
us 31 80 for some puaranteed parking in our lot.
S0 we took in over 51,400 for our effort during
Territory Days.

The expenditwre for painting reduces
cur unoblipated savinps account balance
%8,700. Which topether with the 54,300 left In
owr checking account gives us about 313,000
flexible cash assets. Here's hoping our fund
rising events, book store carninps, and Interest
fiom our Sgo0,000 Endowment fund bullds us
back up the restof the year.

Currently our averape, predictable
recwrring expenses to keep our History Center
doors open, looks like this

Monthly Annually

Utilities 279 3,343
Security 42 LO4
Telephone 51 orz
Internet ) boo
Trash T4 163
Wastewater g 103
Insurance 05 2,342
Total 36 40 37.782

At our Annual Meeting T reported that
wa may earn about 31,000 over costz by the end
of the year, on a total budpet of $20,1573. And we
may possibly have about 3110,000 In total cash
assets. We are on an even keel financially so far
this year.

Dave Huphes, Treas urer
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SUMMER CALENDAR

Tuesday Nights in July — at the History Center - 7 pm

July 1 — Old-Fashioned Ice Cream Social & Cake Walk, 7 'til 8:30, small charge
July 8 — “Art & the New Deal in El Paso County” with Pat Musick, free
July 15 - “A Colorado History Sampler” with Phil McDonald, free
July 22 - “Down the Santa Fe Trail to Colorado & Beyond”
with Mary Humphreys, free
July zg - *"New Year's Eve on the Top of Pikes Peak! — an 85-year tradition”
with AdAmAn member, Don Sanbom, and Don Kallaus, photo exhibit, free

Saturday, August ¢ Annual Founder’s Day Celebration
in Bancroft Park 10 am. 'til 3 p.m.
- Arts & Crafis, Entertainment, Contests, Tours, Talks, Garvin Cabin open

Sunday, August 10  Annual Cemetery Crawl Fundraiser at Fairview Cemetery
A walking tour with historical vignettes by members and actors portraying life
tand death!) from earliest Colorado City days.

Contact the History Center for tickets, time and more inforrnation. Bring friends!

For more information, call (719) 636-1225 or email historv@oldcolo.com




